ONTARIO SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE COMMERCIAL LIST

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES' CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PROPOSED PLAN
OF COMPROMISE OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RESPECT TO
LI-CYCLE HOLDINGS CORP., LI-CYCLE CORP., LI-CYCLE AMERICAS CORP.,
LI-CYCLE U.S. INC., LI-CYCLE INC., AND LI-CYCLE NORTH AMERICA HUB, INC.

SUPPLEMENT TO THE FIRST REPORT OF THE MONITOR ALVAREZ & MARSAL CANADA INC.

MAY 22, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Apper	Appendix A – First Report of the Monitor, dated May 21, 2025 (without appendices)				
APPE	NDICES				
4.0	STALKING HORSE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT	6			
3.0	AMENDED SALE PROCESS ORDER AND AMENDED SISP	4			
2.0	DIP TERM SHEET AMENDMENT AND AMENDED ARIO	3			
1.0	INTRODUCTION & PURPOSE	1			

1.0 INTRODUCTION & PURPOSE

- On May 14, 2025, Li-Cycle Holdings Corp., Li-Cycle Corp., Li-Cycle Americas Corp., Li-Cycle U.S. Inc., Li-Cycle Inc., and Li-Cycle North America Hub, Inc. (collectively, the "Applicants") sought and obtained an initial order (the "Initial Order") from the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (Commercial List) (the "Court") under the *Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act*, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, as amended. The proceedings commenced thereby are referred to herein as the "CCAA Proceedings".
- 1.2 On May 14, 2025, following the granting of the Initial Order, the CRO, in its capacity as foreign representative, obtained an Order granting provisional relief from the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York, and will be seeking recognition of the CCAA Proceedings as "foreign main proceedings" and the giving full force and effect to the CCAA Proceedings, the Initial Order and the ARIO (as defined below) in the United States under Chapter 15 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (the "Chapter 15 Proceedings", and together with the CCAA Proceedings, the "Restructuring Proceedings").
- On May 21, 2025, Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc., in its capacity as monitor (in such capacity, the "Monitor") filed its first report in the CCAA Proceedings (the "First Report"). This report (this "Supplementary First Report") should be read in conjunction with the First Report. All capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the meanings given to them in the First Report, and this Supplementary First Report is subject to the same terms of reference and disclaimer as set out in the First Report in all respects. A copy of the First Report, without appendices, is attached hereto as Appendix "A".

- 1.4 The First Report was filed in connection with the Applicants' motion returnable May 22, 2025, seeking: (i) the Amended and Restated Initial Order (the "ARIO"); and (ii) the Sale and Investment Solicitation Order (the "Sale Process Order").
- 1.5 On May 22, 2025, prior to the hearing of the Applicants' motion seeking the ARIO and Sale Process Order, the Applicants served on the Service List the affidavit of Saneea Tanvir, sworn May 22, 2025, which included as exhibits:
 - a proposed form of first amendment to the DIP Term Sheet (the "DIP Term SheetAmendment"); and
 - (ii) a proposed form of amendment no. 1 to the Stalking Horse Agreement (the "Stalking Horse Agreement Amendment").
- 1.6 The Applicants also served on the Service List:
 - (i) an amended ARIO (the "Amended ARIO"); and
 - (ii) an amended Sale Process Order and amended SISP (the "Amended Sale ProcessOrder" and "Amended SISP", respectively).
- 1.7 The Amended Sale Process Order, the Amended SISP, the DIP Term Sheet Amendment, the Stalking Horse Agreement Amendment and the Amended ARIO, are collectively referred to herein as the "Amended Relief".
- 1.8 The purpose of this Supplementary First Report is to provide additional information to the Court regarding the Amended Relief sought at the Applicants' motion, returnable May 22, 2025.

2.0 DIP TERM SHEET AMENDMENT AND AMENDED ARIO

DIP Term Sheet Amendment

- As noted in the First Report, the Applicants and the DIP Lender have been engaged in negotiations with respect to potential amendments to the DIP Term Sheet. On May 22, 2025, the Applicants and the DIP Lender agreed to amend the DIP Term Sheet substantially on the terms set out in the DIP Term Sheet Amendment.
- The material change made to the DIP Term Sheet by the DIP Term Sheet Amendment is revising section 14 such that the DIP Lender's Charge shall now be subordinate to "any valid and enforceable Encumbrances (as defined in the Amended and Restated Initial Order) against the Property (as defined in the Amended and Restated Initial Order) in the United States in favour of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics, materialmen, workmen, repairmen and other liens that are inchoate or statutory under applicable law in each case held by any person other than the DIP Lender's affiliates, excluding any such Encumbrances which are determined by a court to be void or voidable under applicable law".
- 2.3 The DIP Term Sheet Amendment, among other things, also clarifies the use of certain defined terms and corrects certain typographical errors.

Amended ARIO

2.4 In connection with the DIP Term Sheet Amendment, the proposed Amended ARIO also contemplates in paragraph 66 that the DIP Lender's Charge shall be subordinate to "any valid and enforceable Encumbrances against the Property in the United States in favour of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics, materialmen, workmen, repairmen and other liens that

are inchoate or statutory under applicable law in each case held by any person other than the DIP Lender's affiliates, excluding any such Encumbrances which are determined by a Court to be void or voidable under applicable law" (the "US Lienholders").

- 2.5 The Monitor understands that the revisions to the the DIP Term Sheet Amendment and Amended ARIO to subordinate the DIP Lender's Charge to the Encumbrances of US Lienholders was agreed by the Applicants and the DIP Lender in an effort to resolve a specific objection by MasTec Industrial, Corp., which asserts one or more liens against the Rochester Hub in the United States (and has not requested that similar relief be sought in Canada).
- 2.6 The Monitor notes that the DIP Term Sheet, as amended by the DIP Term Sheet Amendment, and Amended ARIO do not contemplate the subordination of the DIP Lender's Charge to any analogous lienholders in Canada. The Monitor is not aware of the existence of any such Canadian lienholders, the Applicants have advised the Monitor that no such lienholders should exist, and no such lienholders have come forward in the CCAA Proceedings to date.

3.0 AMENDED SALE PROCESS ORDER AND AMENDED SISP¹

3.1 As noted in the First Report, the Applicants have been engaged with respect to potential amendments to the Sale Process Order and the SISP with the DIP Lender and Stalking Horse Bidder, resulting in the Amended Sale Process Order and Amended SISP, which were served on the Service List on May 22, 2025.

_

¹ Capitalized terms used in this section and not otherwise defined herein or the First Report have the meanings given to them in the Amended Sale Process Order or the Amended SISP, as applicable.

- 3.2 The Monitor notes that with respect to the assessment of Phase 1 Bids in the Amended SISP, the Amended SISP:
 - (i) clarifies that if no Qualified LOIs are received in respect of the Stalking Horse Assets (other than the Stalking Horse Bidder), the Applicants and the Financial Advisor, in consultation with the Monitor, may deem the Stalking Horse Bidder to be the Successful Bid, in which case: (a) the SISP shall not proceed into Phase 2 and that no Auction is required in respect of the Stalking Horse Assets; and (b) the Applicants shall seek Court approval of, and authority to consummate, the Stalking Horse Agreement and the transactions provided for therein;
 - (ii) provides for additional procedures related to the assessment of Qualified LOIs with respect to non-Stalking Horse Assets; and
 - (iii) permits the Applicants and the Financial Advisor, in consultation with the Monitor, to approach to Stalking Horse Bidder to determine if it would consider modifying the Stalking Horse Bid to exclude certain assets that can be the subject of a nonoverlapping third-party Qualified LOI to increase proceeds and the overall value derived from the SISP.
- 3.3 In the Monitor's view, the modifications to the SISP reflected in the Amended SISP provide enhanced clarity and flexibility to bidders as well as the Applicants and the Financial Advisor, in order to facilitate a value maximizing transaction or series of transactions, while also permitting the Applicants to expedite the consummation of the Stalking Horse Bid if no other Qualified LOIs are received for the Stalking Horse Assets.

3.4 The Monitor also notes that the Applicants are no longer seeking the approval of a liquidation agreement or the commencement of a realization process pursuant to the Amended Sale Process Order (as previously contemplated), and understands that the Applicants may seek such approval at a later date pending the results of Phase 1 of the SISP.

4.0 STALKING HORSE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT

- As noted in the First Report, the Applicants and the Buyer have engaged in negotiations with respect to potential amendments to the Stalking Horse Agreement. On May 22, 2025, the Applicants and the Buyer agreed to amend the Stalking Horse Agreement substantially on the terms set out in the Stalking Horse Agreement Amendment.
- Agreement Amendment is that the assets contemplated to be transferred to the Buyer pursuant to the Stalking Horse Agreement shall now include the assets of Li-Cycle Americas Corp., related to the Ontario spoke (located in Kingston, Ontario), and the credit bid component of the Purchase Price has been increased as a result by USD\$1 million.
- Agreement Amendment does not contain all of the changes that may be required to properly reflect the transfer of the assets of Li-Cycle Americas Corp., related to the Ontario spoke. Instead, pursuant to the Stalking Horse Agreement Amendment, the parties have agreed "to negotiate in good faith any material amendments to this Agreement that may be necessary or desirable to reflect the transfer of the assets of Li-Cycle Americas Corp., related to the Ontario spoke", which must be finalized by "no later than [•]/the date that is

five (5) days following the date of this Amendment". The Monitor notes that the Stalking Horse Agreement and the Stalking Horse Agreement Amendment will be subject the provision of the Amended Sales Process Order which only permits minor amendments thereto with the consent of the Monitor.

4.4 The Stalking Horse Agreement Amendment, among other things, also revises certain defined terms and corrects certain typographical errors.

All of which is respectfully submitted to this Court this 22nd day of May, 2025.

ALVAREZ & MARSAL CANADA INC.,

solely in its capacity as Monitor of Li-Cycle Holdings Corp., Li-Cycle Corp., Li-Cycle Americas Corp., Li-Cycle U.S. Inc., Li-Cycle Inc., and Li-Cycle North America Hub, Inc. and in no other capacity

Per:

Josh Nevsky

Senior Vice President

APPENDIX A

ONTARIO SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE COMMERCIAL LIST

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES' CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, AS AMENDED

AND IN THE MATTER OF A PROPOSED PLAN
OF COMPROMISE OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RESPECT TO
LI-CYCLE HOLDINGS CORP., LI-CYCLE CORP., LI-CYCLE AMERICAS CORP.,
LI-CYCLE U.S. INC., LI-CYCLE INC., AND LI-CYCLE NORTH AMERICA HUB, INC.

FIRST REPORT OF THE MONITOR ALVAREZ & MARSAL CANADA INC.

MAY 21, 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0	INTRODUCTION	1
2.0	TERMS OF REFERENCE AND DISCLAIMER	5
3.0	UPDATE ON CHAPTER 15 PROCEEDINGS	7
4.0	DIP FACILITIES	7
5.0	SISP AND STALKING HORSE AGREEMENT	13
6.0	AMENDED AND RESTATED INITIAL ORDER	26
7.0	UPDATED CASH FLOW FORECAST	28
8.0	INTERCOMPANY ARRANGEMENTS DURING THE CCAA PROCEEDINGS	31
9.0	KEY EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLAN	33
10.0	COURT ORDERED CHARGES	35
11.0	ACTIVITIES OF THE MONITOR SINCE THE FILING DATE	39
12.0	MONITOR'S RECOMMENDATION	41
APPE	ENDICES	
Appe	ndix A – Pre-Filing Report of the Proposed Monitor dated May 13, 2025 (without appendices)	ISCLAIMER 5 CEEDINGS 7 GREEMENT 13 TIAL ORDER 26 AST 28 ENTS DURING THE CCAA PROCEEDINGS 31 AN 33 SINCE THE FILING DATE 39 ON 41 P Facilities Fen-Week Period Ending July 25, 2025
Appe	ndix B – Summary of Comparable DIP Facilities	
Appe	ndix C – Summary of SISP	
Appei	ndix D – Cash Flow Forecast for the Ten-Week Period Ending July 25, 2025	
A nnei	ndix E. – Management's Representation Letter Regarding the Undated Cash Flow Fore	cast

1.0 INTRODUCTION

- On May 14, 2025 (the "Filing Date"), Li-Cycle Holdings Corp. ("Holdings"), Li-Cycle Corp., Li-Cycle Americas Corp., Li-Cycle U.S. Inc. ("North America OpCo"), Li-Cycle Inc. ("US SpokeCo"), and Li-Cycle North America Hub, Inc. ("US HubCo") (collectively, the "Applicants") sought and obtained an initial order (the "Initial Order") from the Ontario Superior Court of Justice (Commercial List) (the "Court") under the *Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act*, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, as amended (the "CCAA"). The proceedings commenced thereby are referred to herein as the "CCAA Proceedings".
- 1.2 The Applicants are comprised of the North American entities of the broader Li-Cycle group of companies (the "Li-Cycle Group") which includes the European and Asian subsidiaries of Holdings, which are non-Applicant subsidiaries and are not part of the CCAA Proceedings. The Li-Cycle Group is a global lithium-ion battery resource recovery company headquartered in Toronto, Ontario.
- 1.3 The CCAA Proceedings were commenced as part of a larger coordinated restructuring of the Li-Cycle Group. On May 14, 2025, following the granting of the Initial Order, the CRO (as defined below), in its capacity as foreign representative, obtained an Order granting provisional relief from the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the "US Bankruptcy Court"), and will be seeking recognition of the CCAA Proceedings as "foreign main proceedings" and the giving full force and effect to the CCAA Proceedings, the Initial Order, the ARIO and the Sale Process Order (each as defined below) in the United States under Chapter 15 of the United States Bankruptcy Code

(the "Chapter 15 Proceedings", and together with the CCAA Proceedings, the "Restructuring Proceedings").

- 1.4 Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc. ("A&M"), in its capacity as proposed monitor, filed the Pre-Filing Report of the Proposed Monitor dated May 13, 2025 (the "Pre-Filing Report"). The Pre-Filing Report and other Court-filed documents in the Restructuring Proceedings are available on the Monitor's case website at: www.alvarezandmarsal.com/licycle (the "Case Website"). A copy of the Pre-Filing Report (without appendices) is also attached hereto as Appendix "A".
- 1.5 The Initial Order, among other things:
 - (i) appointed A&M as monitor of the Applicants (in such capacity, the "Monitor");
 - (ii) granted a stay of proceedings in respect of the Applicants until and including May22, 2025 (the "Stay Period");
 - (iii) approved the engagements of the CRO, the CFO, Maplebriar and the Financial Advisor (each as defined in the Initial Order and described in the Pre-Filing Report);
 - (iv) granted the Administration Charge, the Directors' Charge and the Intercompany Charge (each as defined in the Initial Order);
 - (v) authorized the Applicants to incur no further expenses for the duration of the Stay

 Period in relation to any Securities Filings (as defined in the Initial Order); and

- (vi) authorized the CRO to act as the foreign representative in connection with the Chapter 15 Proceedings.
- 1.6 The purpose of this first report of the Monitor (this "**First Report**") is to provide this Court with information, and where applicable, the Monitor's view on:
 - (i) the relief sought by the Applicants pursuant to the proposed Amended and Restated Initial Order (the "ARIO"), which, among other things:
 - (a) extends the Stay Period to and including July 7, 2025;
 - (b) authorizes the Applicants to obtain and borrow under a debtor-in-possession credit facility (the "**DIP Facility**") provided by Glencore International AG (in such capacity, the "**DIP Lender**"), in an amount not to exceed \$10.5 million, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the DIP Term Sheet between the Applicants and the DIP Lender dated May 14, 2025 (the "**DIP Term Sheet**");
 - (c) grants a charge on the Property (as defined in the ARIO) as security for the Applicants' obligations to the DIP Lender under the DIP Term Sheet;
 - (d) grants a charge on the Property as security for the CRO Restructuring Fee and the Maplebriar Restructuring Fee (each as defined and described in the Pre-Filing Report);
 - (e) approves a key employee retention plan (the "**KERP**"), and grants a charge over the KERP Funds as security for payments to be made for the benefit

- of the KERP Participants and for the Maplebriar Work Fee (each as defined below);
- (f) seals Confidential Exhibit "H" to the Aziz Affidavit subject to further order of the Court;
- (g) increases the quantum of the Administration Charge to \$2.5 million, and removes the \$1 million limit on the Intercompany Charge imposed in the Initial Order; and
- (h) authorizes the Applicants to pay certain pre-filing amounts, with the consent of the Monitor and in accordance with the terms of the DIP Term Sheet;
- (ii) the relief sought by the Applicants pursuant to the proposed Sale and Investment Solicitation Order (the "Sale Process Order"), which, among other things:
 - (a) approves the sale and investment solicitation process (the "SISP"), and authorizes the Applicants to implement the SISP, with the assistance of the Financial Advisor and under the oversight of the Monitor;
 - (b) authorizes and approves the Applicants' execution of the equity and asset purchase agreement dated May 14, 2025 (the "Stalking Horse Agreement") among all of the Applicants except Li-Cycle Inc. (collectively, the "Sellers") and Glencore Canada Corporation (the "Stalking Horse Bidder"), and approves the Stalking Horse Agreement solely for the purposes of acting as the "stalking horse bid" in the SISP (the "Stalking Horse Bid"); and

- (c) approves the payment of the Expense Reimbursement and the Break Fee (each as defined below) (collectively, the "Bid Protections") to the Stalking Horse Bidder as contemplated by the Stalking Horse Agreement in the event that another transaction is selected as the highest or best bid (the "Successful Bid") in the SISP, and grants a Court-ordered Bid Protections Charge (as defined below) as security for payment of the Bid Protections;
- (iii) the Chapter 15 Proceedings;
- (iv) the activities of the Monitor since its appointment; and
- (v) the Monitor's conclusions and recommendations in connection with the foregoing.

2.0 TERMS OF REFERENCE AND DISCLAIMER

- In preparing this First Report, A&M, in its capacity as Monitor, has been provided with and has relied upon unaudited financial information and the books and records prepared by the Applicants, and has held discussions with management of the Applicants and its legal counsel, the CRO, Maplebriar and the Financial Advisor (collectively, the "Information"). Except as otherwise described in this First Report in respect of the Applicants' cash flow forecast:
 - (i) the Monitor has reviewed the Information for reasonableness, internal consistency and use in the context in which it was provided. However, the Monitor has not audited or otherwise attempted to verify the accuracy or completeness of the Information in a manner that would wholly or partially comply with Canadian Auditing Standards ("CASs") pursuant to the *Chartered Professional Accountants*

Canada Handbook (the "CPA Handbook") and, accordingly, the Monitor expresses no opinion or other form of assurance contemplated under CASs in respect of the Information; and

- (ii) some of the information referred to in this First Report consists of forecasts and projections. An examination or review of the financial forecasts and projections, as outlined in the CPA Handbook, has not been performed.
- 2.2 Future oriented financial information referred to in this First Report was prepared based on the Applicants' management's estimates and assumptions. Readers are cautioned that since projections are based upon assumptions about future events and conditions that are not ascertainable, actual results may vary from the projections, even if the assumptions materialize, and the variations could be significant.
- 2.3 This First Report should be read in conjunction with the affidavit of Ajay Kochhar, sworn May 12, 2025 (the "Kochhar Affidavit") and the affidavit of William E. Aziz, sworn May 16, 2025 (the "Aziz Affidavit"), each filed in support of the relief sought by the Applicants under the CCAA. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this First Report shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Kochhar Affidavit and the Aziz Affidavit, as applicable.
- 2.4 Unless otherwise stated, all monetary amounts contained herein are expressed in United States dollars ("USD").

3.0 UPDATE ON CHAPTER 15 PROCEEDINGS

- 3.1 A hearing is scheduled before the US Bankruptcy Court on May 23, 2025, at which the CRO, in its capacity as foreign representative, shall seek an Order of the US Bankruptcy Court, among other things, recognizing the CCAA Proceedings as "foreign main proceedings" and the giving full force and effect to the CCAA Proceedings, the Initial Order, the ARIO and the Sale Process Order in the United States under Chapter 15 of the United States Bankruptcy Code.
- 3.2 The Monitor understands that, as of the date of hereof, objections have been filed with the US Bankruptcy Court that remain unresolved, including from the United States Trustee. The Monitor understands that the United States Trustee objects to the recognition of the CCAA Proceedings as either a "foreign main proceeding" or a "foreign nonmain proceeding" with respect to North America OpCo., US SpokeCo and US HubCo. The Monitor's US counsel will attend the hearing, and the Monitor will provide a further update to the Court as part of its next report.

4.0 DIP FACILITIES

- 4.1 As described in the Aziz Affidavit, the Applicants require financing during the CCAA Proceedings to provide the liquidity necessary to maintain their business as a going concern, preserve value of their assets for their stakeholders and pursue and implement any transactions resulting from the SISP.
- 4.2 To obtain access to such liquidity, the Applicants negotiated the terms set out in the DIP Term Sheet. The DIP Facility and the process undertaken by the Applicants to secure the

DIP Facility are described in greater detail in the Aziz Affidavit to which the DIP Term Sheet is attached as Exhibit "D".

4.3 The key terms and components of the DIP Term Sheet¹ include the following:

DIP Term Sheet (Capitalized terms have the meaning ascribed thereto in this First Report or in the DIP Term Sheet, as applicable)		
Agreement	Debtor-In-Possession Financing Term Sheet, dated as of May 14, 2025	
Borrower	Li-Cycle Holdings Corp. (Ontario) (the "Borrower")	
Guarantors	 Li-Cycle Corp. (Ontario) Li-Cycle Americas Corp. (Ontario) Li-Cycle U.S. Inc. (Delaware) Li-Cycle Inc. (Delaware) Li-Cycle North America Hub, Inc. (Delaware) (collectively, the "Guarantors", and together with the Borrower, the "DIP Loan Parties") 	
DIP Lender	Glencore International AG	
Commitment and Use of Proceeds	 Available borrowings in aggregate amount of \$10.5 million, made up of: (i) \$9 million (increased by up to \$1.25 million if the Rochester Option (as defined in the Stalking Horse Agreement) is exercised by Glencore Capital Corporation pursuant to the Stalking Horse Agreement), to: (a) fund the operations of the North American business; (b) facilitate the CCAA Proceedings, including the SISP; and (c) make intercompany loans to Li-Cycle U.S. Inc. and Li-Cycle APAC Pte. (the "Asian Parent") (a non-Applicant); (ii) \$1.5 million, to fund the operations of Li-Cycle Europe AG (Switzerland) (the "European Parent") and Li-Cycle Germany GmbH (Germany) (the "German Spoke") (each, a non-Applicant) pursuant to Intercompany Loans 	
Interest	 11.3% per annum Additional default interest of 2.0% 	
Maturity Date	The earlier of: (i) July 18, 2025; (ii) the closing of a sale of all or any part of the Transferred Assets; (iii) the termination of the CCAA Proceedings; and (iv) the date of acceleration of the DIP Loans pursuant to the DIP Term Sheet.	
Cash Flow Covenant	 Tested weekly, on a rolling four-week basis (ending two weeks after the previously ended four-week period), the DIP Loan Parties shall not permit: (i) total disbursements to exceed the Budget by more than 10%; (ii) total professional fees and expenses to exceed the Budget by 10%; and (iii) total collections to be less than 90% of the Budget. 	

-

¹ Capitalized terms used in this section and not otherwise defined in the First Report have the meanings given to them in the DIP Term Sheet.

Financial Covenants	Weekly compliance with the Budget, tested on an aggregate cumulative basis, subject to the Permitted Variance
	Minimum unrestricted cash of \$0.5 million, tested weekly
Affirmative	Affirmative covenants include to:
Covenants	(i) deliver financial statements on a monthly basis, the Budget and the Variance Reports, and other information reasonably requested by the DIP Lender;
	(ii) participate in weekly calls with legal and financial advisors and relevant members of management and representatives of the Monitor;
	(iii) provide the DIP Lender with any material information requested by the DIP Lender, acting reasonably and subject to privilege, confidentiality and any restrictions imposed by the SISP Order or any other order of the Court;
	(iv) maintain the insurance currently in existence with respect to the Collateral;
	(v) materially comply with all existing commercial arrangements with Glencore Canada Corporation and any affiliate thereof; and
	(vi) ensure that all disbursements under the Intercompany Loan to the German Subsidiary and Swiss Subsidiary will be paid to Bank Accounts which are pledged as security under the Original Convertible Note.
Negative	Negative covenants include not to:
Covenants	(i) transfer, lease or otherwise dispose of all or any part of its property, assets or undertaking except in the ordinary course of their businesses or pursuant to any Intercompany Loans;
	(ii) create or permit to exist indebtedness for borrowed money other than: (a) indebtedness for borrowed money currently existing; (b) debt contemplated by this DIP Term Sheet; and (c) post-filing trade credit obtained in the ordinary course of business, in accordance with the Budget;
	(iii) permit any new liens to exist on any Collateral other than the DIP Charge, the Administration Charge, the Directors' Charge, the KERP Charge, the Bid Protections Charge, the Intercompany Charge and Permitted Liens (as defined in the Original Convertible Note (other than liens that are permitted under Section 2(n) of the Original Convertible Note)), or as otherwise permitted pursuant to the Court Orders;
	(iv) take any action (or support the taking of any action by another person) that has, or may have, a material adverse impact on the rights and interests of the DIP Lender, including, without limitation, any action in furtherance of challenging the validity, enforceability or amount of the obligations owing in respect of the DIP Facility; and
	(v) except in accordance with the Purchase Agreement or the Sale Process Order, commence, continue or seek any stakeholder or court approval for any sale, restructuring transaction or plan without the prior written consent of the DIP Lender in its sole and absolute discretion.
DIP Collateral	• To be secured by the DIP Charge which shall rank ahead of all other Encumbrances (provided that with respect to the DOE Collateral, the DIP Charge shall rank behind the DOE Security), subject to the Administration Charge, the Directors' Charge, and the KERP Charge (solely as against the KERP Funds).
Events of	Events of Default include:
Default and Remedies	(i) the issuance of an order terminating the CCAA Proceedings or the Chapter 15 Proceedings or lifting the stay in the CCAA Proceedings or the Chapter 15 Proceeding to permit the enforcement of any security against the DIP Loan Parties;
	(ii) the issuance of an order granting a lien of equal or superior status to that of the DIP Charge, other than the Administration Charge, the Directors' Charge and the KERP Charge;

- (iii) failure of any DIP Loan Party to pay any principal, interest, fees or any other amounts, in each case when due and owing under the DIP Term Sheet;
- (iv) any adverse deviation of more than the Permitted Variance from the amount set forth in the Budget for any Budget Period;
- (v) failure of any DIP Loan Party to perform or comply in any material respect with any negative covenant or financial covenant in the DIP Term Sheet;
- (vi) any change of control of any DIP Loan Party, except in accordance with the Purchase Agreement; and
- (vii) any of the Sellers rescinds or purports to rescind or repudiates or purports to repudiate the Purchase Agreement.
- Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, and subject to the Court Orders, whether or not there is availability under the DIP Facility:
 - (i) without any notice to the Borrower, the Borrower shall have no right to receive any additional DIP Loans or other accommodation of credit from the DIP Lender except in the sole and absolute discretion of the DIP Lender; and
 - (ii) the DIP Lender may immediately terminate the DIP Facility and demand immediate payment of all DIP Obligations (other than contingent indemnification obligations) by providing such a notice and demand to the Borrower, with a copy to the Monitor.
- With not less than five (5) Business Days' notice to the Borrower after the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the DIP Lender shall have the right to enforce the DIP Charge and to exercise all other rights and remedies in respect of the DIP Obligations and the DIP Charge, including the right to apply for the appointment of a Court-appointed receiver.
- 4.4 The Monitor notes the following with respect to the DIP Facility:
 - (i) the terms of the DIP Facility are the result of extensive negotiations between the Applicants, the DIP Lender and their respective advisors, and represent the best terms that the Applicants could negotiate in the circumstances to seek a going concern outcome for their business;
 - (ii) the Monitor understands that although the Applicants sought alternative debtor-inpossession financing proposals, the Applicants were unable to obtain any proposals that were on terms more favourable than those reflected in the DIP Facility;
 - (iii) the DIP Facility is conditional upon, among other things, the issuance of the proposed ARIO approving the DIP Facility and granting of the DIP Lender's Charge;

- the DIP Facility, together with the Intercompany Loans contemplated thereby, are projected to provide the Applicants with sufficient liquidity during the CCAA Proceedings to allow the Applicants to stabilize their business while they implement the proposed SISP and will provide liquidity to fund the ongoing operations of the European Parent and the Germany Spoke (both non-Applicants) to allow those entities to remain solvent and avoid a domestic insolvency filing and liquidation, which would be value-destructive for the Applicants and their stakeholders;
- (v) the Permitted Variance threshold for the Budget under the DIP Term Sheet is 10%, which is tested weekly on a rolling four-week basis (ending two weeks after the previously ended four-week period). The Monitor intends to closely track the Applicants' receipts, disbursements and professional fee expenses, as against the Budget, to ensure that all parties are aware of any deviations from forecast that could trigger a covenant breach; and
- (vi) a portion of the DIP Facility funds are contemplated to be on-lent by Holdings to the European Parent, the Germany Spoke and Li-Cycle APAC Pte. on an unsecured basis. The funds on-lent to the European Parent and the German Spoke are governed by separate DIP Proceeds Intercompany Loan Agreements, the forms of which are attached as Schedule "A" to the DIP Term Sheet. The Monitor understands that the funds being on-lent to the European Parent and the German Spoke will be utilized to fund ongoing operations. The Monitor also understands that the funds being on-lent to Li-Cycle APAC Pte. are expected to be used to pay

employees of Li-Cycle APAC Pte. that perform services that benefit the broader Li-Cycle Group.

- 4.5 Attached as **Appendix "B"** is a summary of select DIP financing facilities that have recently been approved by this Court in similar CCAA proceedings, including a number of comparable proceedings that included a stalking horse sale process. The Monitor notes that these comparable DIP loans have ranged in size from approximately CAD\$1.2 million to CAD\$55.0 million, with an average interest rate of 12.5% and incremental fees of 1.7% (commitment fees, exit fees, etc.).
- 4.6 In comparison, the proposed DIP Facility has an interest rate of 11.3% and contains no other incremental fees. Based on the experience of the Monitor and on the information available to it, the Monitor is of the view that the interest rate and other terms set out in the DIP Term Sheet are reasonable in the circumstances.
- 4.7 The Monitor understands that the Applicants and the DIP Lender are engaged in negotiations with respect to potential amendments to the DIP Term Sheet. If the parties reach an agreement, a revised DIP Term Sheet will be circulated to the Service List and the Monitor will comment on same in a supplementary report to Court if necessary.

5.0 SISP AND STALKING HORSE AGREEMENT

Stalking Horse Agreement²

- Agreement as beneficial to the objective of the CCAA Proceedings which is to stabilize and maintain the Applicants' business and to conduct a Court-supervised marketing and sale process for the business and assets of the Li-Cycle Group as it provides a level of certainty that the Applicants' restructured business can be preserved as a going concern and also sets a "floor" price that bidders in the SISP must bid against.
- 5.2 The Sellers entered into the Stalking Horse Agreement with the Stalking Horse Bidder, as purchaser, to acquire: (i) substantially all of the assets and business operations of the Applicants, other than US SpokeCo and the other Excluded Assets (as defined below); (ii) the shares of US SpokeCo held by North America OpCo; and (iii) the shares of the European Parent held by Holdings, all on the terms and conditions set forth in the Stalking Horse Agreement. A copy of the Stalking Horse Agreement is attached as Exhibit "E" to the Aziz Affidavit.
- Pursuant to the Sale Process Order, the Applicants seek, among other things: (i) authorization and approval, *nunc pro tunc*, to enter into the Stalking Horse Agreement; (ii) that the Stalking Horse Agreement be approved and recognized as the Stalking Horse Bid under the SISP; and (iii) approval of the Bid Protections in the event the Stalking Horse Bidder is not the Successful Bid under the SISP.

² Capitalized terms used in this section and not otherwise defined in the First Report have the meanings given to them in the Stalking Horse Agreement.

5.4 Key terms of the Stalking Horse Agreement are summarized in the table below:

Stalking Horse Agreement (Capitalized terms have the meaning ascribed thereto in the First Report or in the Stalking Horse Agreement, as applicable)		
Term (Agreement Citation)	Detail	
Sellers (Schedule I)	 Asset Sellers are: (i) Li-Cycle North America Hub, Inc. (Delaware); (ii) Li-Cycle Corp. (Ontario); (iii) Li-Cycle Americas Corp. (Ontario); (iv) Li-Cycle U.S. Inc. (Delaware); and (v) Li-Cycle Holdings Corp. (Ontario) Equity Sellers are: (i) Li-Cycle U.S. Inc. (Delaware); and (ii) Li-Cycle Holdings Corp. (Ontario) Intellectual Property Seller is: Li-Cycle Corp. (Ontario) 	
Buyer (Recitals)	Glencore Canada Corporation (the "Buyer")	
Transaction, Transferred Equity Interests and Transferred Assets (Section 1.1)	• 100% of the outstanding equity interests of Li-Cycle Inc. and Li-Cycle Europe AG³ (the "Transferred Equity Interests") and substantially all of the assets of the Asset Sellers except for the Excluded Assets (the "Transferred Assets"), and the assumption of the Assumed Liabilities	
Purchase Price (Section 3.2)	 Purchase Price comprised of: (i) \$40,000,000 (the "Credit Bid Amount"), plus (ii) the assumption by Buyer of the other Assumed Liabilities, plus (iii) the Purchase Price Cash Component⁴, plus (iv) the Carve-out Condition Amount⁵. The Credit Bid Amount shall be paid by means of a credit against, first, all amounts owing under the DIP Term Sheet and, second, the principal amount of the Glencore Secured Convertible Note 	

-

³ Prior to Closing, the equity interests of Li-Cycle Norway AS, Li-Cycle United Kingdom Ltd. and Li-Cycle Frans SARL, Li-Cycle Hungary Kft, all non-Applicants will be transferred to Holdings and will not be transferred to the Buyer.

⁴ "Purchase Price Cash Component" means an amount of cash sufficient to satisfy all accrued but unpaid amounts, as of the time of Closing, that are secured by a charge provided by the Initial Order, the Amended and Restated Initial Order or the Sale Process Order.

⁵ "Carve-out Condition Amount" means the amount determined in accordance with Section 8.1(i) of the Sellers' Disclosure Schedule. The amount has not yet been determined.

• Excluded Assets include:
(i) the Excluded Contracts;
(ii) accounts receivable to the extent arising out of any Excluded Asset;
(iii) all Claims that the Sellers may have against any Person (other than Buyer and its Affiliates) with respect to any Excluded Assets;
(iv) the Sellers' directors and officers liability insurance policies, if any;
(v) all executive or incentive compensation, bonus, deferred compensation, pension, profit sharing, severance, retirement, savings, retirement, stock option, stock purchase, group life, health or accident insurance or other Benefit Plan; and
(vi) all cash, commercial paper, treasury bills and other cash equivalents and liquid investments.
• At any time prior to the Closing Date, Buyer may, by written notice to the Sellers and the Monitor, designate any of the Transferred Assets as additional Excluded Assets, with no change to the Purchase Price
• The Purchase Price may be increased as follows if Buyer designates as Excluded Assets:
(i) substantially all of the assets in or at the Rochester Hub (the " Total Rochester Option "), then the Purchase Price shall be increased by \$1.25 million; or
(ii) any portion of the Owned Real Property on (a) the lands subject to the Ground Lease Agreement, or (b) located on the lands subject to that certain Amended and Restated Ground Sublease Agreement (the "Partial Rochester Option"), then the Purchase Price shall be increased by the reasonable, out-of-pocket costs of Sellers associated with the liquidation of the excluded assets up to a maximum of \$1,250,000,
(together referred to as the "Rochester Option").
Assumed Liabilities include:
(i) all liabilities arising under the Assumed Contracts following Closing;
(ii) the Cure Amounts;
(iii) all Debt set forth on the Sellers' Disclosure Schedule;
(iv) the Assumed Debt Obligations; and
(v) all Accrued Wages with respect to Hired Employees.
• In the event that an Alternative Transaction is selected as the Successful Bid in accordance with the SISP, Buyer shall be entitled to: (i) the Break Fee of \$1,000,000; and (ii) the Expense Reimbursement of \$200,000
• The Monitor also notes that there is a \$500,000 minimum overbid amount included in the SISP
Buyer and the Sellers shall execute a mutual release agreement whereby the Buyer,
on the one hand, and the Sellers, on the other hand, agree to waive, release and discharge, effective at the time of Closing, all Claims against the other and their respective Representatives and related parties (other than those claims for repayment under the Glencore Secured Convertible Note, the First A&R Note or the Second A&R Note and subject to certain other customary exceptions)
• July 18, 2025
_

Closing Conditions	Closing conditions include:
(Article VIII)	(i) the DIP Term Sheet shall have been approved by the CCAA Court in form and substance acceptable to Buyer;
	(ii) there shall be no pending challenge or contest to the validity, amount, perfection or priority of the Credit Documents or other Claims of Buyer thereunder that would prevent or otherwise limit Buyer's ability to credit bid;
	(iii) the SISP shall have been conducted in accordance with its terms and the terms of the SISP Order;
	(iv) no event of default shall have occurred under the DIP Facility;
	(v) all shares or other equity interests in all Carve-Out Entities shall have been validly transferred to Li-Cycle Holdings Corp.;
	(vi) the Court shall have granted the Approval and Vesting Order by no later than July 7, 2025;
	(vii) the U.S. Court shall have entered the AVO Recognition and Section 363 Order by no later than July 16, 2025; and
	(viii) the ICA Approval shall have been received.
Termination (Section 9.1)	• The Stalking Horse Purchase Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing:
	(i) by mutual agreement of the Sellers and Buyer;
	(ii) there shall have been a breach by the Sellers of any of their representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in the Stalking Horse Purchase Agreement, which shall not have been cured by the earlier of (a) July 18, 2025, or (b) five (5) Business Days after written notice thereof shall have been received by the Sellers from Buyer;
	(iii) there is a breach or event of default under the DIP Term Sheet;
	(iv) if the CCAA Proceedings are terminated; or
	(v) if Li-Cycle Holdings Corp., or any other Seller, enters into a definitive agreement with respect to an Alternative Transaction or the Court or the Bankruptcy Court otherwise approves an Alternative Transaction.

5.5 The Monitor notes that the Stalking Horse Agreement provides for a potential increase of the Purchase Price by up to \$1.25 million (the "Incremental Winddown Amount"), if the Buyer elects to exercise the Rochester Option (thereby designating certain material assets as additional Excluded Assets under the Stalking Horse Agreement), with the intention that such funds be used to wind down all or part of the Rochester Hub and the Restructuring Proceedings. The Monitor notes that the Budget also includes \$500,000 (anticipated to be funded to the Applicants at the end of the Budget forecast period), which amount the Monitor understands is intended to be used to wind down the Restructuring Proceedings

(the "Winddown Reserve"). The Monitor also notes that the Stalking Horse Agreement contemplates that the Buyer may designate any Purchased Asset (not limited to those relating to the Rochester Hub) as an Excluded Asset prior to Close, which may result in an increase in the costs to wind down the Restructuring Proceedings.

- 5.6 The Monitor is reviewing the sufficiency of these proposed wind down amounts and will provide an update to the Court at the appropriate time if necessary.
- 5.7 The Monitor understands that the Applicants and the Buyer are engaged in negotiations with respect to potential amendments to the Stalking Horse Agreement. If the parties reach an agreement, a revised Stalking Horse Agreement will be circulated to the Service List and the Monitor will comment on same in a supplementary report to Court if necessary.

Pre-Filing Marketing Process

- The SISP has been developed as a re-canvassing of the market following a broad pre-filing marketing process conducted by the Applicants with the assistance of Moelis & Company ("Moelis"), an investment banking firm previously engaged by the Li-Cycle Group to identify additional funding or strategic alternatives (the "Pre-Filing Marketing Process").
- 5.9 As described in the Aziz Affidavit, the Pre-Filing Marketing Process was commenced by the Applicants and Moelis in late November, 2023 under the guidance of a Special Committee of independent directors of Holdings, and consisted of two marketing processes:
 - (i) during the initial process from November 2023 to February 2024, 144 potential strategic and financial investors were contacted, 57 of whom executed non-

disclosure agreements (each, an "NDA") and were granted access to a data room. The Li-Cycle Group and Moelis conducted over 50 management presentations and facilitated extensive due diligence. The Applicants determined to proceed with the \$75 million secured advance from Glencore at the conclusion of this initial process; and

- (ii) during the period from November 2024 to February 2025, the Li-Cycle Group and Moelis conducted a second process, during which 149 parties were contacted (including parties that participated in the initial process, together with a group of new parties), of which 52 executed an NDA and were granted access to the data room which had continued to be updated by Moelis and the Li-Cycle Group. During this second marketing process, the Li-Cycle Group conducted an additional 22 management presentations.
- 5.10 The Monitor understands that notwithstanding the lengthy Pre-Filing Marketing Process, and the extensive efforts of Moelis and the Li-Cycle Group, the Li-Cycle Group was ultimately not able to execute a viable transaction or obtain sufficient additional investment, and efforts with Moelis were paused in late February 2025.

Overview of the SISP⁶

5.11 Pursuant to the Sale Process Order, the Applicants are also seeking, among other things, approval of the SISP.

⁶ Capitalized terms used in this section of the First Report and not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the proposed SISP.

- 5.12 The SISP contemplates a two-phase process that will be administered by the Applicants and the Financial Advisor, under the supervision of the Monitor, with Phase 1 and Phase 2 being a combined 46 days. The SISP commenced on May 12, 2025 in order to maximize the marketing period given the Applicants' limited liquidity. It is proposed that the Stalking Horse Agreement will act as the Stalking Horse Bid and will be subject to better and higher offers that may be received during the SISP.
- 5.13 The SISP is intended to solicit interest in opportunities to acquire all, substantially all, or a portion of the Property (each, a "Sale Proposal"), or a recapitalization, arrangement, or other form of investment in or reorganization of the Business (each, an "Investment Proposal") from Qualified Bidders, as a going concern or otherwise (the "Opportunity").
- 5.14 The key terms and milestones contemplated by the SISP are set out in **Appendix "C"**.
- 5.15 The Financial Advisor, with the assistance of the Applicants and the Monitor, has contacted 157 potential bidders, including 88 strategic buyers and 69 financial sponsors (collectively, the "Known Potential Bidders") to whom it has sent a Teaser Letter describing the Opportunity and an NDA. As of May 20, 2025, 23 parties have executed an NDA and have been provided with a confidential information memorandum (the "CIM") and granted access to an electronic data room (the "Data Room"). The Monitor has assisted and supervised the Financial Advisor on the launch of the SISP and will continue to do so throughout the process.

General Comments Regarding the SISP and the Stalking Horse Agreement

5.16 The SISP timeline was negotiated among the Applicants, the Financial Advisor, and the Stalking Horse Bidder in consultation with the Monitor with consideration to the

efficiencies that can be leveraged from the Pre-Filing Marketing Process. The SISP and its timeline is a requirement of the DIP Lender providing the DIP Facility.

- 5.17 The SISP provides the flexibility for the Monitor to modify, amend, vary or supplement the provisions, terms or conditions of the SISP, in order to give effect to the substance of the SISP or the Sale Process Order, without the need for obtaining an order of the Court. Subject to any order of the Court, the dates set out in the SISP may be extended by the Applicants in consultation with the Financial Advisor, with the consent and approval of the Monitor and the Stalking Horse Bidder.
- 5.18 The Monitor has considered and supports the relief sought by the Applicants pursuant to the proposed Sale Process Order for the following reasons:
 - (i) the Monitor is of the view that the SISP is commercially reasonable and has been designed to maximize value through a competitive bidding process, and to provide greater certainty of a going concern outcome for the business should the SISP not produce a superior result to the Stalking Horse Agreement;
 - (ii) although the timelines included in the proposed SISP are condensed, the Monitor is of the view, given the Pre-Filing Marketing Process and the steps that have been taken to date, that SISP participants will have been provided sufficient time to review the Opportunity and submit a non-binding LOI (25 days) or a binding Bid (46 days in aggregate). Of note, the Financial Advisor commenced the SISP on May 12, 2025 with fully prepared materials supporting the SISP (i.e., the Teaser Letter, the NDA, the list of Known Potential Bidders, and a populated Data Room);

- (iii) the Monitor has compared the Bid Protections, which represent 3% of the Purchase Price (excluding the value of assumed liabilities) to other stalking horse break fees and expense reimbursements approved by this Court in similar proceedings, and based on the Monitor's review, the Bid Protections appear to be reasonable in the circumstances and typical for a transaction of this size and complexity; and
- (iv) the Monitor does not believe the creditors of the Applicants would be materially prejudiced by the Stalking Horse Agreement or the SISP.
- 5.19 The Monitor understands that the Applicants are engaged in negotiations with respect to potential amendments to the SISP. If the Applicants revise the SISP, the revised version will be served on the Service List and the Monitor will comment on same in a supplementary report to Court if necessary.

Glencore Prefiling Debt and Security

- 5.20 The Monitor notes that the Stalking Horse Agreement contemplates a credit bid of a portion of the Glencore Secured Convertible Note (as defined below) (in addition to the DIP Facility).
- 5.21 As further described in the Kochhar Affidavit and the Pre-Filing Report, Holdings issued to Glencore Ltd. ("Glencore Intermediate") an unsecured convertible note in the aggregate principal amount of \$200 million (the "Original Convertible Note"), pursuant to a Note Purchase Agreement dated May 5, 2022. Holdings paid interest due and payable in-kind under the Original Convertible Note through the issuance of three additional unsecured convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of \$25,357,584.66 (the "PIK Notes").

- 5.22 On March 21, 2024, Glencore Intermediate assigned the Original Convertible Note and PIK Notes to Glencore Canada Corporation (in such capacity, the "**Noteholder**"), pursuant to a Master Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated as of March 21, 2024.
- 5.23 On March 25, 2024, Holdings issued to the Noteholder a secured convertible note in the aggregate principal amount of \$75 million (as amended and restated, the "Glencore Secured Convertible Note"), pursuant to the Amended and Restated Note Purchase Agreement dated March 25, 2024 (as amended and restated, the "Note Purchase Agreement"). The Glencore Secured Convertible Note is guaranteed by the Canadian Note Parties⁷, the U.S. Note Parties⁸ and Li-Cycle Europe AG and Li-Cycle Germany GmbH.
- 5.24 As security for the Glencore Secured Convertible Note, among other things: (i) the Canadian Note Parties granted to Glencore Canada Corporation, as collateral agent (in such capacity, the "Glencore Collateral Agent"), for the benefit of itself and the Noteholder, a general security interest in all of their present and after acquired personal property, subject to certain exclusions, pursuant to the Canadian Security Agreement dated March 25, 2024 (the "Canadian Glencore Secured Convertible Note GSA"); and (ii) the U.S. Note Parties granted to the Glencore Collateral Agent, for the benefit of itself and the Noteholder, a general security interest in all of their present and after acquired personal property, subject to certain exclusions, pursuant to the U.S. Pledge and Security Agreement dated March 25, 2024 (the "U.S. Glencore Secured Convertible Note GSA", and together

⁷ "Canadian Note Parties" means Holdings, Li-Cycle Corp. and Li-Cycle Americas Corp.

⁸ "U.S. Note Parties" North America OpCo, US SpokeCo and US HubCo.

with the Canadian Glencore Secured Convertible Note GSA, the "Glencore Secured Convertible Note Security Documents").

- 5.25 Also on March 25, 2024, pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, the Original Convertible Note, the PIK Notes, and a fourth additional unsecured convertible note issued on March 25, 2024 in the aggregate principal amount of \$5,809,217.74, were amended and restated into an unsecured convertible note in the aggregate principal amount of \$116,551,170.40 (as amended and restated, the "First A&R Note") and an unsecured convertible note in the aggregate principal amount of \$114,615,632.00 (as amended and restated, the "Second A&R Note").
- 5.26 The First A&R Note and the Second A&R Note each provide that, on the occurrence of certain trigger events (each, a "Modification Date"), among other things, they shall become secured by a general security interest in all of the present and after acquired personal property of the Canadian Note Parties and the U.S. Note Parties, subject to certain exclusions.
- 5.27 On December 9, 2024, the Modification Date under the First A&R Note occurred and: (i) the Canadian Note Parties granted to the Noteholder a general security interest in all of their present and after acquired personal property, subject to certain exclusions, pursuant to the Canadian Security Agreement dated December 9, 2024 (the "Canadian First A&R Note GSA"); and (ii) the U.S. Note Parties granted to the Noteholder a general security interest in all of their present and after acquired personal property, subject to certain exclusions, pursuant to the U.S. Pledge and Security Agreement dated January 13, 2025 (the "U.S. First A&R Note GSA", and together with the Canadian First A&R Note GSA,

the "First A&R Note Security Documents", and together with Glencore Secured Convertible Note Security Documents, the "Glencore Prefiling Security Documents"). As of the date of this First Report, the Modification Date under the Second A&R Note has not yet occurred and, as a result, the Second A&R Note remains unsecured.

5.28 As further described in the Kochhar Affidavit, key terms and components of the Glencore Secured Convertible Note, the First A&R Note, and the Glencore Prefiling Security Documents include the following:

Glencore Prefiling Security Documents (Capitalized terms have the meaning ascribed thereto in this First Report or in the applicable Glencore Prefiling Security Document, as applicable)				
Notes	 Glencore Secured Convertible Note First A&R Note 			
Issuer	Li-Cycle Holdings Corp. (Ontario)			
Guarantors	• Li-Cycle Corp. (Ontario), Li-Cycle Americas Corp. (Ontario), Li-Cycle U.S. Inc. (Delaware), Li-Cycle Inc. (Delaware), Li-Cycle North America Hub, Inc. (Delaware), Li-Cycle Europe AG (Switzerland) and Li-Cycle Germany GmbH (Germany)			
Investors	 Glencore Canada Corporation, as Collateral Agent under the Glencore Secured Convertible Note (the "Glencore Collateral Agent") Glencore Canada Corporation, as noteholder under the Glencore Secured Convertible Note and the First A&R Note (the "Noteholder") 			
Committed Securities	 \$75,000,000 under the Glencore Secured Convertible Note \$116,551,170.40 under the First A&R Note 			
Interest	 SOFR + 5% if interest is cash paid SOFR + 6% if interest is paid in kind 			
Maturity Date	 March 25, 2029 under the Glencore Secured Convertible Note December 9, 2029 under the First A&R Note 			
Conversion Rights	 Convertible at the Noteholder's option at any time from time to time Glencore Secured Convertible Note convertible at price of \$0.53 per common share, subject to certain adjustments First A&R Note convertible at price of the lesser of (i) the amount determined on the basis of a volume weighted average per share price of the common shares for thirty (30) trading days ending immediately prior to December 9, 2024, plus a 25% premium, and (ii) \$9.95 per common share, subject to certain adjustments 			
Security	In respect of the Glencore Secured Convertible Note: (i) the Canadian Note Parties granted liens to the Glencore Collateral Agent on a first priority basis on substantially all of the tangible and intangible assets of			

	and Carelian Nata Danta including all as it is to set of Cal Cal Cal
	such Canadian Note Party, including all equity interests of Li-Cycle Corp., Li-Cycle Americas Corp., and Li-Cycle Europe AG (other than Excluded Assets), pursuant to the Canadian Glencore Secured Convertible Note GSA; and
	(ii) the U.S. Note Parties granted liens to the Glencore Collateral Agent on a first priority basis on substantially all of the tangible and intangible assets of such U.S. Note Parties, including all equity interests of the U.S. Note Parties (other than Excluded Assets), pursuant to the U.S. Glencore Secured Convertible Note GSA
	In respect of the First A&R Note:
	(i) the Canadian Note Parties granted liens to the Noteholder on a first priority basis on substantially all of the tangible and intangible assets of such Canadian Note Party, including all equity interests of Li-Cycle Corp., Li-Cycle Americas Corp., and Li-Cycle Europe AG (other than Excluded Assets), pursuant to the Canadian First A&R Note GSA; and
	(ii) the U.S. Note Parties granted liens to the Noteholder on a first priority basis on substantially all of the tangible and intangible assets of such U.S. Note Parties, including all equity interests of the U.S. Note Parties (other than Excluded Assets), pursuant to the U.S. First A&R Note GSA
Excluded Assets	 In respect of the Canadian Glencore Secured Convertible Note GSA and the Canadian First A&R Note GSA, an Excluded Asset includes "Project Loan Collateral, in accordance with the terms of an applicable Project Financing Intercreditor Agreement" In respect of the U.S. Glencore Secured Convertible Note GSA and the U.S. First A&R Note GSA, an Excluded Asset includes "from and after the closing of any Project Financing, (i) the applicable Project Loan Collateral (unless and to the extent a Project Financing Intercreditor Agreement shall have been entered into by and among the applicable Project Lender, the Collateral Agent and the Issuer)"9
Subordination & Intercreditor	Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement,
Arrangements	(i) upon the closing of Project Financing, the liens on any property of any Canadian Note Party or U.S. Note Party that constitutes Project Loan Collateral granted to, or held by, the Glencore Collateral Agent ¹⁰ shall automatically, unconditionally, immediately and irrevocably be subordinated to the liens on such Project Loan Collateral that are granted to or held by the Project Lender in connection with any Project Financing, subject to the proceeding clause (ii) and (iii);
	(ii) in the event that the Project Lender, the Glencore Collateral Agent and the Noteholder are unable to reach agreement on the terms of an intercreditor agreement that is acceptable to the Project Lender, the liens granted to or held by the Glencore Collateral Agent on the Project Loan Collateral shall be automatically, unconditionally, immediately and irrevocably released; and

⁹ "Project Loan Collateral" includes any assets of the Canadian Note Parties or U.S. Note Parties that are required to be pledged pursuant to definitive documentation entered into with the U.S. Department of Energy or the Federal Financing Bank (each, a "Project Lender") in connection with any Project Financing.

¹⁰ Pursuant to the First A&R Note Security Documents, notwithstanding anything in the First A&R Note Security Documents or the First A&R Note to the contrary, the Noteholder will release any lien granted to or held by the Noteholder upon any Collateral in accordance with the Note Purchase Agreement.

	 (iii) if Li-Cycle Holdings Corp. determines in good faith that the Glencore Collateral Agent, the Noteholder and the Project Lender have not reached agreement on the terms of an intercreditor agreement that is acceptable to the Project Lender and that continued negotiation of such intercreditor agreement could reasonably be expected to delay or impede the ability of the U.S. Note Parties to obtain Project Financing, Li-Cycle Holdings Corp. may deliver written notice of such determination to the Glencore Collateral Agent and the Noteholder and unless a Project Financing Intercreditor Agreement is agreed between Glencore Canada Corporation and the Project Lender within five (5) Business Days of the date of such notice, the liens granted to, or held by, the Glencore Collateral Agent or the Noteholder on the Project Loan Collateral shall be automatically, unconditionally, immediately and irrevocably released Pursuant to that certain intercreditor agreement dated as of December 9, 2024, the liens securing the obligations owing under the Glencore Secured Convertible Note shall rank <i>pari passu</i> with the liens securing the obligations owing under the First A&R Note¹¹
Paramountcy	• Pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement, in the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the Note Purchase Agreement and any other Transaction Document (other than an Intercreditor Agreement), the terms of the Note Purchase Agreement shall govern and control

5.29 As the Stalking Horse Purchase Agreement contemplates a credit bid of a portion of the Glencore Secured Convertible Note, the Monitor is in the process of obtaining customary legal opinions from Canadian and US counsel regarding the security granted by the Applicants in connection with the Glencore Prefiling Security Documents. The Monitor will provide a further update to the Court in a future report once such opinions have been rendered, but the Monitor is not currently aware of any material issues that would alter the Monitor's recommendations herein.

6.0 AMENDED AND RESTATED INITIAL ORDER

Pre-Filing Payments

6.1 The proposed ARIO permits the Applicants to pay, with the consent of the Monitor and in accordance with the DIP Term Sheet and the Updated Cash Flow Forecast, certain

¹¹ The Monitor understands that neither the closing with funding of the Project Financing nor the deadline for reaching agreement on the terms of an intercreditor agreement that is acceptable to the Project Lender, in each case as referred to in the Note Purchase Agreement, have occurred.

suppliers for expenses incurred prior to the Filing Date. The Monitor intends to work closely with the Applicants to ensure that only the most critical suppliers, if any, receive payments in respect of their pre-filing amounts.

- 6.2 The Monitor considered the following to assess the reasonableness of the above requested relief:
 - (i) the intended outcome of the CCAA Proceedings is to complete the sale transaction contemplated by the Stalking Horse Agreement, or an alternative transaction that may result from the SISP. As such, to stabilize and maintain the Applicants' business and to preserve the value of the Applicants' assets, which could potentially impact a going concern outcome, the Monitor is of the view that the payment of certain pre-filing amounts is reasonable in the circumstances; and
 - (ii) the Monitor's consent will be required before any such proposed payment may be made, with such payments conforming with the DIP Term Sheet.

Extension of the Stay Period

- 6.3 Pursuant to the Initial Order, the current Stay Period is set to expire on May 22, 2025. The Applicants are seeking an extension of the Stay Period to and including July 7, 2025, which coincides with the date for Court-approval of a Successful Bid, as set out in the SISP.
- 6.4 The Monitor supports the Applicants' motion to extend the Stay Period for the following reasons:

- (i) it will provide the Applicants with the ability to continue to stabilize and maintain their business while running the proposed SISP through which the Applicants anticipate a going concern outcome for all or a large portion of their business;
- (ii) the Applicants are projected to have sufficient liquidity through to the end of the proposed extended Stay Period; and
- (iii) the Applicants continue to act in good faith and with due diligence.

7.0 UPDATED CASH FLOW FORECAST

- The Applicants have prepared an updated cash flow forecast (the "Updated Cash Flow Forecast") for the ten-week period ending July 25, 2025 (the "Cash Flow Period"). A copy of the Updated Cash Flow Forecast, together with a summary of assumptions (the "Cash Flow Assumptions") and management's report on the cash-flow statement required by section 10(2)(b) of the CCAA are attached hereto as Appendices "D" and "E", respectively.
- 7.2 A summary of the Updated Cash Flow Forecast is set out in the following table:

Updated Cash Flow Forecast	(\$000's USD)
Receipts	1,729
Disbursements	
Operating and Holding Costs	2,702
Occupancy Costs	1,412
Salaries and Benefits	2,002
Professional Fees	7,073
KERP Pre-Funding	1,300
Wind Down Reserve	500
DIP Interest & Fees	72
Total Disbursements	15,062
Net Cash Flow	(13,333)
Cash Balance, Opening	4,887
Net Cash Flow	(13,333)
DIP Facility Draws, net	8,946
Ending Cash Balance	500
Ending DIP Facility	8,946

- 7.3 The Monitor notes the following with respect to the Updated Cash Flow Forecast:
 - receipts include the collection of existing accounts receivable and forecast sales of on-hand black mass and shredded metal;
 - (ii) occupancy and holding costs include rent, security, maintenance and other disbursements required to maintain and secure the Applicants' facilities, which for the most part are in care and maintenance;
 - (iii) salaries and benefits include payroll, benefits and taxes for remaining employees in the U.S. and Canada;

- (iv) professional fees include the fees of the Applicants' Canadian and US legal counsel, the Monitor, the Monitor's Canadian and US counsel, the Financial Advisor, the CRO, the CFO and other professionals; and
- (v) the Applicants intend to transfer funds to a trust account held by the Monitor (should the Court grant the ARIO as sought) for the KERP Participants.
- 7.4 During the Cash Flow Period, net cash flows are projected to be approximately negative \$13.3 million, which is projected to be sufficiently funded by: (a) cash-on-hand; and (b) draws on the DIP Facility, which is forecast to peak during the Cash Flow Period at approximately \$8.9 million.
- 7.5 Based on the Monitor's review, ¹² nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe, in all material respects, that:
 - (i) the Cash Flow Assumptions are not consistent with the purpose of the Updated Cash Flow Forecast;
 - (ii) as at the date of this Report, the Cash Flow Assumptions are not suitably supported and consistent with the plans of the Applicants or do not provide a reasonable basis for the Updated Cash Flow Forecast, given the Cash Flow Assumptions; or
 - (iii) the Updated Cash Flow Forecast does not reflect the Cash Flow Assumptions.

¹² The Monitor has reviewed the Updated Cash Flow Forecast to the standard required of a Court-appointed Monitor by section 23(1)(b) of the CCAA. Section 23(1)(b) requires a Monitor to review the debtor's cash flow statement as to its reasonableness and to file a report with the Court on the Monitor's findings. Pursuant to this standard, the Monitor's review of the Updated Cash Flow Forecast consisted of inquiries, analytical procedures and discussions related to information supplied to it by the Applicants and key members of the Applicants' management. The Monitor reviewed information provided by management for the Cash Flow Assumptions. Since the Cash Flow Assumptions need not be supported, the Monitor's procedures with respect to them were limited to evaluating whether they were consistent with the purpose of the Updated Cash Flow Forecast.

7.6 The Updated Cash Flow Forecast has been prepared solely for the purpose described above and readers are cautioned that it may not be appropriate for other purposes.

8.0 INTERCOMPANY ARRANGEMENTS DURING THE CCAA PROCEEDINGS

- 8.1 In the ordinary course of their operations, certain of the Applicants are party to a number of intercompany transactions within the Li-Cycle Group (the "Operating Intercompany Transactions"). The Monitor understands that the Operating Intercompany Transactions consisted primarily of the following:
 - (i) prior to the pausing of the operations of North America Opco and US SpokeCo on May 1, 2025, North America Opco sourced and purchased the inventory that was then processed by US SpokeCo, the products of which were then, in turn, sold by North America Opco;
 - (ii) patents and patent applications owned by Li-Cycle Corp. have been licensed to North America Opco, as well as each of the European Parent and the Asian Parent pursuant to non-exclusive, revocable, royalty-bearing, non-assignable intellectual property license agreements. Each of North America OpCo, the European Parent, and the Asian Parent have, in turn, entered into separate non-exclusive, revocable, royalty-free, non-assignable intellectual property sub-license agreements with certain of their respective subsidiaries, in the case of North America OpCo, its subsidiaries being other Applicants;
 - (iii) the organization structure of the Li-Cycle Group is such that certain of the entities perform activities that benefit the other entities on a regional and global scale. To facilitate this structure, the Li-Cycle Group entities have entered into a series of

intercompany services transactions that align activities performed with the ultimate beneficiary of such activities. These intercompany services are comprised of engineering and other shared services that include labour related costs, overhead costs, and various third-party expenses; and

- (iv) as described in the Kochhar Affidavit, the majority of the cash and cash equivalents
 of the Li-Cycle Group are held by Holdings. Accordingly, in the ordinary course,
 Holdings funds the operations and expenses of the other Applicants, as well as
 certain of the non-Applicant subsidiaries.
- 8.2 The Operating Intercompany Transactions are funded through intercompany accounts payable, loans and through equity contributions by Holdings from time to time, and the Li-Cycle Group utilizes a transfer pricing policy (the "**Transfer Pricing Policy**") to record the Operating Intercompany Transactions. The Monitor understands the Li-Cycle Group has engaged Deloitte as its advisor to conduct a transfer pricing analysis of the Operating Intercompany Transactions.
- 8.3 The following table sets out the intercompany balances of the Applicants, based on the books and records of the Applicants at April 30, 2025:

Li-Cycle Group Intercompany Balances (Excluding Intercompany Loans) at April 30, 2025					
Owed By	Owed To	Net Amount (\$)			
U.S. Applicants	Canadian Applicants	43,223,404			
Canadian Applicants	Non-Applicant	4,852,403			
U.S. Applicants	Non-Applicant	2,701,945			

- 8.4 In addition to the above, Holdings has also made non-interest-bearing intercompany advances to the European Parent in the aggregate amount of \$29.65 million based on the books and records of the Li-Cycle Group at April 30, 2025.
- 8.5 The Initial Order authorizes the Applicants (each, an "Intercompany Lender") to loan, and the other Applicants (each, an "Intercompany Borrower") to borrow, such amounts from time-to-time, with the approval of the Monitor, as considered necessary or desirable, on a revolving basis to fund its ongoing expenditures and to pay such other amounts as are permitted by the Initial Order (the "Intercompany Advances"), up to an aggregate of \$1 million. The proposed ARIO removes the \$1 million limit on Intercompany Advances, requiring only that the Intercompany Advances be made on terms consistent with existing arrangements or past practice or otherwise approved by the Monitor.
- 8.6 The Monitor will monitor the Intercompany Advances that occur during the CCAA Proceedings and will provide regular updates to the Court in respect of same.

9.0 KEY EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE PLAN

- In order to facilitate and encourage the continued participation of senior and operational management and other key employees during the CCAA Proceedings, the Applicants are seeking approval of: (i) the KERP, which includes 25 employees who are considered by the Applicants to be critical to the successful completion of the SISP and the CCAA Proceedings (the "KERP Participants"); and (ii) the granting of the KERP Charge (as defined below) to secure the payments anticipated to become due under the KERP.
- 9.2 The proposed KERP provides for retention bonuses calculated as a percentage of the KERP Participants' annual salary, totalling approximately \$1.3 million in the aggregate across the

KERP Participants (comprised of CAD\$869,973.92 and \$672,075.46) (the "**KERP Employee Funds**")¹³.

- 9.3 The individual KERP amounts (the "**KERP Amounts**") are earned by the KERP Participants upon the date that is the earliest of:
 - (i) July 31, 2025;
 - (ii) the KERP Participant's termination, without cause; or
 - (iii) the consummation of a transaction that: (a) effectuates a recapitalization or restructuring of a material portion of the Li-Cycle Group's outstanding indebtedness; or (b) involves an acquisition, merger, or other business combination pursuant to which a majority of the business, equity, or operating assets of the Li-Cycle Group is sold, purchased, or combined with another entity or company.
- 9.4 The KERP is attached (without Schedule A to the KERP) as Exhibit "G" to the Aziz Affidavit. An unredacted version of Schedule A to the KERP, which provides KERP Amounts by KERP Participant has been filed as Confidential Exhibit "H" to the Aziz Affidavit, which the proposed ARIO provides shall be sealed, kept confidential, and not form part of the public record pending further order of the Court.
- 9.5 As part of its review and consideration of the KERP, the Monitor examined key employee retention plans and key employee incentive plans that have previously been approved by the Court in similar proceedings. The Monitor supports the approval of the proposed

¹³ In addition to the KERP, prior to the commencement of the CCAA Proceedings the Applicants paid approximately \$83,000 in retention payments to seven employees who are KERP Participants as incentive to their continued participation to assist the Applicants in the preparation leading up to the Filing Date.

KERP, the granting of the KERP Charge and the filing of Confidential Exhibit "H" to the Aziz Affidavit under seal, as:

- (i) the KERP will provide stability to the business and assist in facilitating the successful completion of the CCAA Proceedings by incentivizing the retention of the KERP Participants;
- the KERP Participants are considered by the Applicants, in exercising their business judgement, to be crucial to maximizing realizations in the CCAA Proceedings for the benefit of the Applicants' stakeholders;
- (iii) the terms of the KERP and the quantum of the payments expected to be made thereunder are reasonable both in the circumstances and when compared to other key employee retention plans previously approved by the Court; and
- (iv) Confidential Exhibit "H" to the Aziz Affidavit contains personal and sensitive information including the names and remuneration of individual employees, which may cause harm to the applicable employees should such information be made available to the public.

10.0 COURT ORDERED CHARGES

10.1 The proposed ARIO and Sale Process Order provide for charges (the "Charges") on the Property, each as described below, in the following maximum amounts and order of priority:

Proposed Charges & Priorities		\$000's
1.	Administration Charge	\$2,500
2.	Directors' Charge	\$450
3.	KERP Charge (solely as against the KERP Funds)	as described below
4.	DIP Lender's Charge	\$10,500
5.	Transaction Fee Charge	\$1,000
6.	Intercompany Charge	as described below
7.	Bid Protections Charge	\$1,200

10.2 The ARIO and Sale Process Order, as applicable, provide that the Charges are to rank in priority to all other security interests, trusts, liens, charges and encumbrances, claims of secured creditors, statutory or otherwise in favour of any person; provided, however, the DIP Lender's Charge shall rank behind the DOE Security with respect to the DOE Collateral.

Administration Charge

- 10.3 The Initial Order provides for a first ranking charge over the Property in an amount not to exceed \$2.0 million to secure the fees of the Monitor, counsel to the Monitor in Canada and the United States, counsel to the Applicants in Canada and the United States, the Financial Advisor, the CRO for its monthly work fee as described in the CRO Engagement Letter, and the CFO. The Applicants are seeking an increase in the amount of the Administration Charge to \$2.5 million in the ARIO.
- 10.4 The Monitor assisted the Applicants in the calculation of the Administration Charge and is of the view that it is reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, having regard to the nature of the proceedings, potential work involved at peak times and the size of charges approved in similar sized proceedings.

Directors' Charge

- 10.5 The proposed ARIO provides for a charge on the Property in the amount of \$450,000 as security for any such obligations or liabilities arising after the commencement of the CCAA Proceedings, which is consistent with that of the Initial Order.
- 10.6 Additional information regarding the Directors' Charge, including the Monitor's view of same are provided in the Pre-Filing Report.

KERP Charge

- 10.7 The proposed ARIO approves the payment to the Monitor by the Applicants of:
 - (i) the KERP Employee Funds, for the benefit of the KERP Participants; and
 - (ii) \$113,000 (the "Maplebriar Work Fee Funds"), as security for the monthly work fee (the "Maplebriar Work Fee") contemplated by the Maplebriar Engagement Letter.
- 10.8 The proposed ARIO provides for a court-ordered charge (the "**KERP Charge**") solely over the KERP Employee Funds, for the benefit of the KERP Participants, and the Maplebriar Work Fee Funds (together with the KERP Employee Funds, the "**KERP Funds**"), for the benefit of Maplebriar, and authorizes the Applicants to pay the KERP Funds to the Monitor to be held for the benefit of the KERP Participants and Maplebriar as specified therein.
- 10.9 In the Monitor's view, the quantum of the KERP Charge is reasonable both in the circumstances and when compared to other key employee retention plans approved by this Court in the past. The Maplebriar Work Fee Funds are included in the KERP Charge to

reflect that Ajay Kochhar, who was the Applicants' President and CEO until May 14, 2025 is now a consultant to the Applicants. The Monitor supports the granting of the KERP Charge.

Transaction Fee Charge

10.10 The proposed ARIO provides for a charge (the "**Transaction Fee Charge**") on the Property, which shall not exceed an aggregate amount of \$1 million. The Transaction Fee Charge is for the benefit of the CRO, in respect of the Restructuring Fee, and Maplebriar, in respect of the Maplebriar Restructuring Fee (each as described in the Pre-Filing Report). The Monitor supports the granting of the Transaction Fee Charge.

Intercompany Charge

- 10.11 Consistent with the Initial Order, the proposed ARIO also provides for the Intercompany

 Charge for the benefit of each Intercompany Lender on the Property of the applicable

 Intercompany Borrower, as security for the Intercompany Advances made to such

 Intercompany Borrower during the CCAA Proceedings. The proposed ARIO provides that
 the Applicants are not permitted to make an Intercompany Advance without the approval
 of the Monitor.
- 10.12 In the Monitor's view, the Intercompany Charge is required and reasonable in the circumstances as it will serve to protect the Applicants for any payments, obligations or transfers made to or incurred on behalf of, one or more of the other Applicants during the pendency of the CCAA Proceedings.

Bid Protections Charge

- 10.13 The proposed Sale Process Order provides for a charge (the "**Bid Protections Charge**") on the Property, not to exceed \$1.2 million, as security for the payment of the Bid Protections in the manner and circumstances described in the Stalking Horse Agreement.
- 10.14 The Monitor notes that the granting of the Bid Protections Charge is a condition of the Stalking Horse Agreement, and the Bid Protections are reasonable and consistent with comparable bid protections that have previously been approved by the Court. The Monitor supports the granting of the Bid Protections Charge.

11.0 ACTIVITIES OF THE MONITOR SINCE THE FILING DATE

- 11.1 Since the Filing Date, the activities of the Monitor have included:
 - engaging in discussions with the Applicants and their legal counsel, the Monitor's legal counsel, the Financial Advisor, and the CRO regarding the Restructuring Proceedings, the SISP, the DIP Term Sheet, and the Stalking Horse Agreement;
 - (ii) assisting the Applicants with communications to employees, suppliers, landlords, and other stakeholders;
 - (iii) attending the Court hearing for the application of the CCAA Proceedings held on May 14, 2025;
 - (iv) activating the Case Website and coordinating the upload of Court-filed documents thereon;

- (v) completing and coordinating noticing requirements pursuant to paragraph 55 of theInitial Order, including:
 - (a) arranging for publication of notice of the CCAA Proceedings, in the prescribed form, in The Globe and Mail (National Edition) on May 20, 2025, and May 27, 2025;
 - (b) posting the Initial Order to the Case Website on May 14, 2025; and
 - (c) arranging for notices of the CCAA Proceedings to be sent to all known creditors having a claim against the Applicant of more than CAD \$1,000;
- (vi) activating the Monitor's toll-free number and email account for the CCAA
 Proceedings, and responding to creditor and other inquiries received through those contact points;
- (vii) attending update calls with the Applicants' management, the CFO, and the CRO regarding the CCAA Proceedings;
- (viii) monitoring receipts, disbursements, purchase commitments and the IntercompanyTransfers, including the review of payments made;
- (ix) overseeing and assisting the Financial Advisor through the launch of the SISP;
- (x) posting non-confidential materials filed with the Court to the Case Website;
- (xi) completing the statutory filings pursuant to the CCAA, including filing the requisite forms (Form 1 and Form 2) with the Office of the Superintendent of Bankruptcy (Canada); and

(xii) with the assistance of its legal counsel, preparing this First Report.

12.0 MONITOR'S RECOMMENDATION

12.1 For the reasons set out in this First Report, the Monitor is of the view that the relief requested by the Applicants is reasonable, appropriate and necessary having regard to the current circumstances of the Applicants. As such, the Monitor supports the relief sought by the Applicants and respectfully recommends that the Court grant the ARIO and the Sale Process Order in the form sought by the Applicants.

All of which is respectfully submitted to this Court this 21st day of May, 2025.

ALVAREZ & MARSAL CANADA INC.,

solely in its capacity as Monitor of Li-Cycle Holdings Corp., Li-Cycle Corp., Li-Cycle Americas Corp., Li-Cycle U.S. Inc., Li-Cycle Inc., and Li-Cycle North America Hub, Inc. and in no other capacity

Per:

Josh Nevsky

Senior Vice President

IN THE MATTER OF THE *COMPANIES' CREDITORS ARRANGEMENT ACT*, R.S.C. 1985, c. C-36, AS AMENDED AND IN THE MATTER OF A PROPOSED PLAN OF COMPROMISE OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RESPECT TO LI-CYCLE HOLDINGS CORP. ET AL.

Court File No. CV-25-00743053-00CL

ONTARIO SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE (COMMERCIAL LIST)

Proceeding Commenced at Toronto

FIRST REPORT OF THE MONITOR

Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt LLP

100 King Street West 1 First Canadian Place, Suite 6200 Toronto, ON M5X 1B8

Michael De Lellis LSO#: 48038U

Tel: 416.862.5997

Email: mdelellis@osler.com

Martino Calvaruso LSO#: 57359Q

Tel: 416.862.6665

Email: <u>mcalvaruso@osler.com</u>

Ben Muller LSO#: 80842N

Tel: 416.862.5923

Email: bmuller@osler.com

Counsel for Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc., solely in its capacity as Monitor of Li-Cycle Holdings Corp. et al. and in no other capacity

ONTARIO SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE (COMMERCIAL LIST)

Proceeding Commenced at Toronto

SUPPLEMENT TO THE FIRST REPORT OF THE MONITOR

Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt LLP

100 King Street West 1 First Canadian Place, Suite 6200 Toronto, ON M5X 1B8

Michael De Lellis LSO#: 48038U

Tel: 416.862.5997

Email: mdelellis@osler.com

Martino Calvaruso LSO#: 57359Q

Tel: 416.862.6665

Email: <u>mcalvaruso@osler.com</u>

Ben Muller LSO#: 80842N

Tel: 416.862.5923

Email: bmuller@osler.com

Counsel for Alvarez & Marsal Canada Inc., solely in its capacity as Monitor of Li-Cycle Holdings Corp. et al. and in no other capacity